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JAB TECHNOQLOGIES LIMITED AND CONTROLLED EMTITIES

Directors’ Report

The Board of Directors of Jab Technologies Limited (*the Company”) present their report on the consolidated entity (referred to hereafter as “the
Group" or "Consalidated Entity") consisting of Jab Technologies Limited and its controlied entities for the tinancial year ended 30 June 2007,

Directors

The names and details of the diractors of Jab Technologies Limited in office at the date of this repart are:

Geoff E Mulllns, LLB, BCom. UNSW, Over his 25 yaars in general management, Geoff has been providing corporate advice on the
Barristar-at-Law commercialisation of new technolegies and ventures. With a strong background in both commerce
(Non-Executive Chairman) and law, Geoff has used his high-eval experience in information technology and sommunlcations

to advise numerous Australian and International companies. Geoff is alsa Chalrman of
VentureAxess Capital Limited, VentureAxess Limited, VentureAxess Fund Managers Limited and
Heart Assist Technologies Pty Lid,

Appainted to the Board on 1 May 2007,

Emyr Jones, BA Econ (Hons), FCA Emyr has accumulated over 30 years professional experience as a corporate and financial officer

{Non-Executive Diractor} in various listed UK companias, and non-executive directer of, and investor in, emerging
businesses. Following qualification as a Chartered Accountant in the UK, Emyr joined a leading
listed Advertising Agency Group in London, before leaving to list a private Marketing Services
Group on the London Stock Exchange. Emyr also assisted a new financial research businass to
raise seed capital via a corporate venture partnar, bagaming a founding director and shareholder,
On exit of the corporate partner and investmeant by a leading Eurepean Venture Capital Group,
Emyr became Non-Executive Chairman of the research husiness. Emyr maved 10 Sydney in 2001
and is curently a Direcior of VentureAxess Capital Limited, VentureAxess Limited and
VentureAxess Fund Managers Limited as well a8 Non-Exseutive Chairman of Geebron Pty Lid and
WebhD Technologies Pty Lid,

Appointed to the Board 1 May 2007,

Karalyn Day Karalyn has worked in the venture capital industry for the ast 7 years, prior to which she managed

(Non-Executive Directar) a Japanese backed invesimeni company, She has past experience as a state sales and channels
manager of a publicly listed telacommunications company and in para-legal and legal practice
management, Karalyn also has 12 years successful and extensive experience in the health
industry and is currently a Director of VenturaAxess Limited, VentureAxess Fund Managers Limitad
and Heart Assist Technologies Pty Lid as well as being Company Secretary o varlous comparies
in the VentureAxess Group and its investes companies.
Appointed to the Board 1 May 2007.

Rabert Murdoch (resigned 1 May 2007), Stephen loannides (resigned 22 February 2007 anel Sean Stark (resigned 1 May 2007) also acted as

Directors during the year.

Karalyn Day was appointed Gompany Secretary on 3 October 2007,

Mr Alex Chow was appointed Company Secretary on 1 May 2007 and resigned on 3 October 2007,

Mr John Lemon BA, LLB (Hons) was appointed Company Secretary on 13 February 2006 and resigned on 1 May 2007,

Principal activities

The Consolidated Entity's principal activities during the yeat were the development and release of the EZBiz platform of Intemet e-business services,

Dividend

No dividends were recommanded, declared or paid to members during the financial year.
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JAB TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
Directors’ Report (continued)

Review of operations

The Gonsolidated Entity (Jab Technologies Limited and its controlled entities) recorded & net loss after income tax benefit of $221,469 for the year
ended 30 June 2007, comparad with 8 net loss of $515,903 in the pravious financlal year,

On 15 May 2006 the Company lodged an Offer Information Statement (*0157) with the Australlan Securities & Investments Cornmission, Under the
OIS the Company sought o raise a minimum of $300,000 and up to $1,200,000 to provide funds for further ressarch & development of the EZBiz
gervices range, acquisition of, or investment in, other entities and warking capital.

On 14 June 2008 the Company extended the closing date for applications for shares under the OIS 1o 7 July 2006, but a3 the minimum subseripticn
level had not been reached by that date all application monfes received were refunded, Following this failure to raise funds under the QIS Mr &
loannldes resigned. as the Company's Managing Director {but remained as a Direcior) on 12 July 2006, and the Company's Chalrman, Mr Rab
Murdach, assumed responslbility for the day-to-day operation of the Company.

©On 20 July 2006 the Company entered into @ *Converting Loan Agreement’ with Austex Mining Pty Ltd {"Auslex’), 3 company associated with Director
Mr Rob Murdaeh. Under the Gonverding Loan Agreement Austex was required to provide a loan to the Company of $100,000 to be secured by a fixed
and floating charge over the assets and undertaking of the Company. The money was lo enable the Company to meat its working capital
requirements and to enable tha Gompany's directors 1o evaluate other opportunities additional 1o the Company's current EZBIz business. With the
approval of the Company's shareholders Mr Murdoch's right to receive repayment of the laan would be converted to shares in the Gompany to be
issued to Mr Murdoch at an issue price of not less than $0.10 per share. The share issue date would be no [ater than five {5} business days after lhe
date shareholder approval is receivad. In the event that shareholder approval was not received, lhe loan would be repayable by the Company to
Austex no kater than 20 April 2007, Interest on the loan would accrue at the rate of ten per cent (10%) per annum, calculated dally.

On 19 September 2006 VentureAxess Capital Limited (VAC} annaunced that it would be making an off- market offer to acquire all of the iszued share
capital and outstanding options of tha Company, and the VAC Bidder's Statement was duly senl Lo sharehalders on 10 November 2006, Whilst your
then Directors supparted the offer from VAC, in view of the delays In he offer, it was proposed lo sharehclders &t the Annual General Meeting that lhe
Gompany should seek shareholder approval for the Company to be involved in mining exploration and development actlvity relating thereto.
Sharsholder approval was obtained and Jab Resources Pty Lid was formed. In the Target's Response {7 December 2006) to the VAG offer the
Diractor's Linafimously recommended acceptance of the VAC offer, In the absence of any superior offer, |t was also proposed that an in specie
distribution of Jab Resources Pty Lid shares be made, on & share for share basis, ta exisling shareholders and this was subsequently approved by
shareholders. It was a1so announced in the Target's Statement that Austex, Jab Resources Pty Ltd and the Company had entered into & revised
Gonverting Note Agreement whareby Jab Resources Pty Ltd would take over the liability of Jab Technologies Limited to repay the Converting Loan,

In April 2007 VAC announcad that the offer to acquire the Company had been clased after successfully acquiring 71% of the issued prdinary sheres in
the Company. On 4 April 2007 VAC and Jab Technologies Limited entered into a Converting Note Agrestment whereby VAG would advance $52,000
o the Company for working capital purposes. The Loan carries interest at the rate of 10% pa, calculated daily, and converis into the Company's
ordinaty shares at $0.075 per share, subject to shareholder approval baing received. Following the payment by VAG of Directors emoluments and a
Sueesssiintraduction fee to Leadenhall Australia, the Company is currently indebled to VAG for nearly §174,000. VAC has agreed to defer repaymant
of its Loan in favour of cther creditors,

Fiva Year Summaty of Performance

As the Company listed on 16 September 2005, only 30 June 2007 and 2006 figures have been included.

2007 2006
§ $

Gross Revenus 154,331 3,700
Net profit (lass) before tax (221 465) (637,328)
Total assets 19,519 273,901
Total liabilities {242,200) 168,208
Shareholders funds {deficiency) (222,681) 105,695
Eamings {loss) par share (cents) (1.48) {3.61)
Dividends per share Nil Nil
Nat tanglble assels {deficiency) per share (cents) {1.50) 0.71
ANNUAL REPORT 30 JuNE 2007 4
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JAB TECHNCLOGIES LIMITED AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES

Directors’ Report (continued)

Matters subsequent to the end of the financial year

On 18 September 2007 the Company announced the acquisition of VentureAxess Limited (VAL), & funds management and financlal consultancy
business in @ share for share transaction, subject to shareholder appraval for the issua of the new Jab Technologies Limited shares. It is also
proposed 1o change the name of the enlarged business to VentureAxess Group Limited, and a shareholder's meeting is being held an 1 Nevember
2007 to seek sharehalder approval for these matters as well as to seek approval for the VAC Converting Nete refermed to above,

Likely developments and expected results of operations.

Fellowing completion of the acquisition of VentureAxess Limited, the Company's main acfivities will become fund managers and financial consultants.
The Directors will review the vigbility of the £2Biz following completion of the VAL transaction.

Environmental regulation

The Consofidated Entity's operations were not subject to any particular and significant environmental regulation during the financiat year,

Shares undar option

Unissued ordinary shares of Jab Technologies Limited under option at the date of this report are as follows:

Expiry Date lague Price of Shares Number of Shares Under Option
31 Decamber 2009 $0.20 8,865,029

Optians holders do not have any rights under the options to participale in any share issue of the Company.
Shares issued on the exercise of options

No shares of Jab Technologies Limited were issued during the year ended 30 June 2007 as a resuli of the exercise of options over unissued shares in
the Company, and no further shares have been issued since that date.

Insurance of officars

During the financial year Jab Technologies Limited pald a premium to insure all past, present and future officers and secretaries of the Company
anjainst liability for reasenable legal costs incurred in:

1. the investigation, defence, reporting, or negatiation for settiement of fagal or arbitral proceedings or a claim for compensation; and

2. legally compellable attendance at any official investigation, examination of Inguiry.

However, the insurance does not cover certain defined exclusions, including liability that arises from a dishonest, fraudulert or mallcious act,
intentional or wilful breach of statute, contract of duty, and others,

Meetings of directors

The numbers of meetings of the board of directots and of each board committee held during the year, and the number of meetings attended by each
Director were as follows:

Director Board Meetings Board Committee Meetings
Audit Commitiee

A B A B
R.B. Murdoch 22 2 1 1
5. loannides 19 19 * *
5. Stark 22 2 1 ]
G Mulling 1 1 - -
E Jones 1 1 * *
K Day 1 1

A = Number of meetings attended
B = Nurnber of meetings held during the time the director held office or was @ member of the commitiee during the year
* = Not a member of the relevant commitiee
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JAB TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED AND COMTROLLED EMTITIES

Directors’ Report (continued)

Directors’ interasts in shares and options

Diractars' interests as at the date of this report in shares and options over shares issued by the Company were as follows:

Director No. of ordinary shares in No. of options in which
which relevant interest relevant Interest held
held
Geoff Mullins Nil Nil
Emyr Jones Nil Nit
Karalyn Day Nil Nil

Geaff Mulling, Emyr Junes and Karalyn Day have an intersst in 10,623,687 ordinary shates and 7,272,487 share options held by VenlureAxess Capital
Limited, a company of which they are Directors.

Non-audit services

The directors of Jab Technologles Limited have consiciered the position and in accariance with advice received from the Gompany's Audit Committee, are
satisfied that the provision of non-audit services during the year by Pitcher Partners and/or Nortfstar Accountants is compatitls with the general standard of
independenca for auditors Imposed by the Corporations Act 2001. The directors ara satisfled that the provision of non-audit services by Pilcher Partrigrs
and/or Northstar Acgaurtants did not compromise the auditer independenice requirerments of the Corparations Act 2007 for the following reasons:

» &l non-audit services have been reviewed by the Audit Committes to ensure they do not impact the impartiality and objectivity of the auditor; and

e none of the services undermines the general principles relating to auditor indepandence as set out in Professional Slaternenl F-1, including
reviewing or auditing the auditors’ own work, acling In a management or a decislon-making capagity for the company, acting as advocate for the
company or joinlly sharing economic risk and rewards.

Remuneration report

The remuneration report is set out under the following headings:

A.  Principles used to determine the nature and amount of remuneration
B. Detailz of remuneration

C.  Service agreements

D. Equity-based compensation

The information provided under headings A-D includes remunerations that are required under AASE 124 Related Party Disclosures. These
disclosures have been transferred from the financial report and have tieen audited.

A.  Principles used to determine the nature and amount of remuneration

The remuneration palicy ensures that contracts for services are réviewed on a regular basis and properly reflect the duties and responsitilities of the
individuals concefmed. The executive remuneration structure is based on a number of factors including length of service, relevant markel conditions,
knowledge and experience with the industry, organisational experience, performance of the Company and that the remuneration is sompetitive in
retalning and attracting motivated people. There are ng guaranteed pay increases included in the seniar axecutives’ contracts, '

Up until 30 June 2006 the Gompany provided Stephen loannides and Sean Stark with 2 mixture of fixed pay and a variable squity based incentive
hased Lpon the perfermance of Jab Technologies shares on the National Stock Exchange. Fullowing their resignation as Direclors of the company
such equity based incentives ceased, Rob Murduch did not receive an equity based incentive. From 1 July 2008 Messrs loannides, Stark and Murdoch
recaivad fees at lower lavals in line with tha changed circumstances of the GCompany, and these fees were satisfied by the issue of ordinary shares in
VentureAxess Capital Limited.

Geoff Mullins, Emyr Jones and Karalyn Day who were appointed Directors on 1 May 2007 have agreed not to draw any Directors Fees fram the
Company undil such ime as the Company has sufficient operating activities and funds to make such payments,
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JAB TECHMOLOGIES LIMITED AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
Directors’ Report (continued)

Remuneration report (continued)

A, Princlples used to determine the nature and amount of remuneration (continued)

The faes and remuneration of key management personnel, the non-executive Directors' fees and Chairman's fee are
raviewed by the Directors from fime to fime to determine that they are appropriate and In line with market
expectations. The Chairman is not present at any discussions relating to the determination of his cwn remuneration.
Non-executive Directors' fees are determined within a0 aggregate Directors’ fae pool limit. The current meximum
amount of Non-Executive Directors' faes payable is fixed at $30,000 per annum. The Constitution provides that this
sum can only be increased pursuant {o a reselution at & general mesting.

The key management personnel and the Directars are not entitied to any retirement benefits or receive any additional
benefits except where provided by the superannuation guarantee scheme, which is currently 9%.

B. Details of remuneration
Amaunts of Remunerafion

Details of remuneration of the Directars and the key management personnel (as defined in AASE 124 Related Party
Disclosures) of Jab Technalogies Limited and its controlled entities are set out in the following tables.

The key management persannel of the Group are the Directors of Jab Technologies Limited and any executives that
teport directly to them, There were no such executives during the financial year.
The equity incentives payable to Stephen loannides and Sean Stark are &t out in section C.

Details of the nature and amount of each element of the emalument of each Director of the company and each of the
key management personnel for the consolidated entity recelving the highest emolument for the: finanelal year are as

follows:
Short-term benefits  Post-employment quLt:;l:iaI:ed
Base Benefits
Specified directors Salary & Fees Superannuation Upﬂsons Tu$tal
¥ o8

Robert Murdoch e ‘ L
(Non-Executive 2007 arasm ' - a - A 27,500
Chairman/CEO) T ‘ S

2006 16,519 - .
Stephen loannides T ‘8560
{Non-Executive Director) a0 g0 - 8,560

2006 127,968 ‘ - - 127988
Sean Stark g T e e L
(Non-Executive Director) 2007 o 24,200 e e 2‘4.2‘00‘...‘ B,

2006 31450 . - 31,480
Geoff Mulins T T T e
{Nan-Execulive a0 ‘ . ‘ " ‘ ‘ L Tw
Chairrnan} S o ; .
Emyr Jones Cippni . .
{Non-Executive Director) - 200? o
Keralyn Day i o T
(Non-Executive Director) _:.‘2:907,-‘ _ . ‘ ‘ U
Totalremuneration 2007 O au20 . U T T goaen

2006 176,357 - . 176,357
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JAB TECHNQLOGIES LIMITED AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
Directors’ Report (continued)

Remuneration report (continued)
B. Details of remuneration (continued)

Amounts of Remuneration (continued)

PARENT ENTITY
Short-term benefits P“tﬁ;:';ﬁgme“t Equity-based henefits
Other key management Bage
personne! Salary & Fees Superm;nuatinn Dpt;ons To$tn|
John Lemon o7 - L T
20086 17,508 - )
Martin Jericho 2007 } - - o B T A
omoe 826 | 7437 T a00ss
Michael Ilett 2007 R
2006 17,679 . - 17678
Total Remuneration 000 - . ey T
2008 117,816 7437 - 125,253

The subsidiary companies paid no remuneration to Directors and key management personnel nor were gash bonuses, non-monetary henefits or
retirement benefits paid to the Directors or kay management personnel,

Crily Staphen loannides and Sean Stark were entitied to equity-based options.

The Directars and Executives ramunaration have been determined on the basis of the cost to the entity, which includes specific benefits.

C.  Service agreements

Agreements and Share Based Compensation

Jab Technologies Limited (*the Company") entered into a Consultancy Agreement with Mr. Stephen loannides and Jaz Software Pty ("Jaz"), an entity
associated with Mr, loannides with effect from & June 2005.

Under this Agreement, the Company engaged Jaz to provide executive public company imanagesment and such cther services as may be required by
the Company, for 2 years from the date that Jab Technologies Limited listed on National Stock Exchange {*N&X"), and also sequred the services of Mr.
loanmides 1o act a5 Chief Executive Offlcer of the Company. Mr loannides resigned as GEQ on 12 July 2007 effectively terminating the Agreement with
Jaz. Mr lgannides continued as a Non-Executive Director until his resignation on 22 February 2007,

The Agreement provided that Jaz would:

(@)  bepald afee of $71,400 per month (exclusive of GST), and

{b)  subject to shareholder approval, be issued with a fotal of 1 970,000 eptians to subscribe for ordinary shares in the capltal of the Company on the ‘
|ast day of the manth in which Jab Technologies is admitted to the official list of the NBX. The options are exercisable at 20 cents per share on
ar before 31 July 2008.

Of the 1,920,000 options to be issued to Jaz, 80,000 options will vest on the fast ¢ay of each manth of the 2 year term of the agreement provided that
the average closing price of the Jab shares (during that month) is equal to or oreater than $0.20. If the average closing price for any motith is below
§0.20 then that month's options will nat vest. During the year ended 30 June 2007 the Jab share price remalned below $0.20 shares and no options
vested during the year, The granting of 1,920,000 options to Jaz had been independently valued at $78,298 in 2005,
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JAB TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
Directors’ Report (continued)

Remuneration repott {continuad)
€.  Service agreements (continued)

Agresments and Share Basad Compensation (confiniied)

. The Company entered into 2 Consultancy Agreement with Mr, Sean Stark, which commenced on & June 2009, Under this Agreement, Mr.Stark was

appainted as a non-executive director of the Company for 2 years from the date that Jab Technologies Limited lisied on NSX, to assist in developing
and commercialising the Company's products,

The Agresment provided that Mr. Stark would:

{z) be pald a fee of §1,200 per menth;

(b}  be paid a consulting retainer of $1,000 per month; and

(c) subjert to shareholder approval, be lssued with @ total of 380,000 epilons to subscribe for ordinary shares in the capital of the Company on the
last day of the manth in which Jab Technologies Limited is admitted to the official list of the NSX. The options are exercisable at 20 cants per
share on or before 31 July 2008.

Of the 360,000 aptions to be issued to Mr. Stark, 15,000 options will vest on the 1ast day of each month of the 2 year term of the Agreement provided
that the average closing price of the Jab Shares {during that menth) Is equal to or greater than $0.20. If the average closing price of the Jab Shares
(during the month) for any month is below $0.20 then that month's options will not vest. During the year ended 30 June 2007 the Jab sharg price
remained below $0.20 and no options vested, The granting of 360,000 optlons to Mr. Stark had been Independently valued at $14,681 in 2006.

An agreement for the provision of administrative services by Unlen Resources Limited ("Union’) was entered into on 13 May 2006, but did not
gammence unti & September 2005, Pursuant o the Agreement, Union provided administration and management services to the Company, including
sarvices such a5 secretarial and accounting support, office fumiture, equipment and iglephone and reception facilifies.

In consideration for the provision of these services, Union is reimbursed for the costs it incurs in providing Lhe services upon presentatlon of a monthly
invoice by Unian, and in any event, not more than $2,500 per month. The initial term of this appaintment is for 12 months, and if not ierminated at the
explry of this term, will continue for succassive 12 month periods until terminated.

Remuneration and other terms of employment for the Chalrman and other key management personnel of the group are formalised in sefvice

agresments. The contractual arrangements cortain certain provisions typically found in conracts of this nature, Other major provisions of the
agreements relating to the remuneration are set out below:

+ R B, Murdoch {(Managing Director)
Base Salary of $125 per hour plus travel, accommodation and general out of pocket expenses
Period of Termination — Three (3} Months
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JAR TECHNOLCGIES LIMITED AND CONTRCLLED ENTITIES

Directors’ Report (continued)

Remuneration report {continued)
D. Equity-based compensation

The options are granted 1o Jaz, a company associated with Mr. loannides, and Mr, Stark under thelr respective service agreements. The opliuns are
granted for no consideration and are subject lo the satisfaction of a market condition.

The optiona are granted for a two (2) year period and carry no dividend of voting rights. Each opiion was exercisable al sight (8) cents at any time
bafore 31 July 2008 or within three (3) manths after the Direclor ceases to be employed by Jab and each option is convertibie Into one (1) ardinary
share.

i the Market Condition had been satisfied, the grant of the options would be sibject to shareholder approval and obtalning approvals pursuant fo the
Corporations Act and the Listing Rules of the NSX. The actual grant date will occur after Jaz and Mr. Stark have rendered Lheir services. The
Company recognises |he services when received and has recognised the grant date fair value of the opfions for the purposes of recognising the
services received during the period between the service commencement date and actual grant date (“Entitiernent Date”).

For the year ended 30 June 2007 no entitiements to options arase as market conditions were not met. As at 30 June 2006, Jaz had become entitied 1o
a 1otal of 160,000 options and Mr Stark had become entitled to & total of 30,000 options, However, at 30 June 2006 shareholder and regulalory
approval has not been suught for the issue of the options and no options were forfelled or exercised during the year ended on that date.
Subsequently, in July 2008, each of Jaz and Mr Stark waived thelr right to receive the 160,000 aptions and 30,000 options respectively.

Set out below is a summary of options granted to Jaz and Mr Stark.

Entitlernant  Explry Date Exercize Balance at Entitied Exercised Expired Balance at Exercisable
Date Price statofthe  duringthe  durlngthe  durlhgthe  endofthe  atend of the
yoar year year year Bar year
(Number) (Number) {Number) {Number) {Number) {Number}
M 0ct2002 31 Jul 2008 $0.08 — 85,000 — - — -
31 Nov2005 31 Jul 2008 $0.08 - 05 000 - — — —
Total 190,000

The: fair value of the options had been caloulated at $0.0408 per option using the Black-Scholes option pricing madel that takes into account exerclse
price, term of the option, vesting and market conditions, the impact of dilution, the aon-tradeable nature of the options, the share prce at grant date,
expected price volatility of the underlying shares, the expected dividend yield, discount for non trangferability and the risk-frae interest rate for the tarm
of the option.

No ather Director or other key management personnel of the Group are eligible to participate in the aptlen scheme,

Directors’ interests in ghares and options

As 2t 30 June 2007, the interests in the equity instruments of the Company held by Directors and other key management personnel of the Group were
as follows:

Ordinary Shares Fulty Paid L Optionz Liated
Directors " 30June 2007 30 June 2006 © Whnezowr 30 June 2006
G Muling . - S -
E Jones ; - - o -
K Day - - - ‘ . B -
R B. Murdech C s 1,315,750 N 180,268
S. loannides T e 583,571 i Treo .
8. Stark D . 145,000 ‘ S . ) 40,000
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JAB TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES

Directors’ Report (continued)

Remuneration report (continued)
Directors’ Interests in shares and options (continued)

As at the date of this report the Ditectors' interests and nature in shares and options issued by the Company wers nil.

Audit committes

This commities oversees and appraises the quality of audits conducted by the consclidated entity's external auditors, as well as defermining the adequacy «
administrative, operating and accounting controls. It is responsible for ensuring ihat the consolidated entity praperly complies with all legislation and policie
affecting its daily operafions. It maintains open lines of communication between the Board and external advisers and oversees the identification of risk ta ensur
its proper management.

Members of the Audit Committee during the year were:
Name

R. B, Murdoch = resigned 1 May 2007

8. Stark — resigned 1 May 2007

G Mullins — appainted 1 May 2007
K Day - appointed 1 May 2007

Remuneration report, service agreements and share hased payments

Remuneration, service agreement and share based payment detalls for the executive direclor, non-executive directors and senior executive officers of th
company and consolldated entity are set out in the Remuneration Report section of this Directors’ Report,

Directors’ interests in contracts

As rafered o in Review of Operations above, on 20 July 2006 the Company entered into & Converting Loan Agreement with Austex Mining Pty Lid wherab

.Austex provided a loan facility of $100,000 to the Campany. It was announced in December 2006 that Austex, Jab Resources Pty Ltd and the Company ha

onterad into & revised Converting Note Agresment whereby Jab Resources Pty Ltd wouid lake over the liability of Jab Technologies Limited to repay th
Gonverting Loan. As a consequence tha Campany abtained a benefit of 550,748 which is shown as debt forgivenass income in these accaunts. Rob Murdoch i
associated with Austex Mining Pty Ltd, On 4 Aprl 2007 VentureAxess Capital Limited and Jab Technologies Limited entered into a Converting Note Agreemer
whareby VAC would advance $52,000 to the Company for working capital purposes. The Loan carries interest at the rate of 10% pa, calculated daily, and convert
inte the Company’s ordinary shares at $0.075 per share, subject to sharcholder approval being received. G Mullins, E Jones and K Day are Dirgctors ¢
VenturaAxess Capital Limited.

No other material contracts involving Directors' Interests were entered into during the financial year, other than those transactions detailed in the Remuneratia
report section of this Dlreclors’ Report,

Tax consolidation
Effective 4 September 2004, for the purposes of income taxation, Jab Technologies Limited and its whally owned subsidiaries have formed a tax consolidate
group. Members of the group have entered into a tax sharing amangement in order to aliocate income tax expense 1o the wholly owned subsidiarles on a pro-rat

basle. In addition, the agresment provides for the allocation of income tax liabiliies between the entities should the head entity default on its tax paymer
ohligations.
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JAB TECHMOLOGIES LIMITED AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES

Directors’ Report (continued)

Corporate governance

The Board of Directors i responsible for the Corparate Governance of the consolidated entlty, The Board Is committed fo achieving the highest
standards of corporate behaviour and accountability, The company's Corporate Govemance Statement is contained in the following section of this
report.

Appointment of Auditors

Fitcher Partners resigned as Auditars on 1 October 2007 subject fo ASIC consent. Following correspandence with ASIC, Andrew Stanning of Northstar
Accountants was appointed Auditers to the Company on 29 Qctober 2007.

Auditors’ independence

Saction 307C of the Corporations Act 2007 requires the Company's auditors, Northstar Accountants, to provide the Direclors with a wrilien
independence declaration In relation to their review of the financial report for the yesr ended 30 June 2007. The written Auditor's independence
declaration iz attzched to the Directors’ Report and forms part of this Directors’ Report.,

Rounding

The company is of a kind referred to in Class Order 38/0100, issued by the Australian Securities and Investmenta Commission, relating to the rounding
of amounts in the financial report. Amounts in the financial report have been rounded in accordance with that Class Order o the nearest dollar,

Geoff Mulling
Chalrman

Sydney, 31 Oclober 2007
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AUDITOR’S INDEPENDENT DECLARATION

AUDITOR’S INDEPENDENCE DECLARATION
TO THE DIRECTORS OF JAB TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED

In relation to our audit of the financial report of JAB Technologies Limited for the
year ended 30 June 2007, to the best of my knowledge and belief, there have been no
conventions of the auditor independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001
or any applicable code of professional conduct.

NORTHSTAR ACCOUNTANTS

¥

ANDREW DEREK STAMNING
Suite 9, 90 Mona Vale Road, MONA VALE, N§W, 2103

31 October 2007

Northstar Accountants Pty Ltd
ABN 73 000 813 735

e info@nsg.com.au
WWW.Nsg.com.au

Suite B, 90 Mona Valg Rd
Mona Valg NSW 2103

p 59599 2544 £ 0099 4460

Level 2, 100 Bay Rd

Waverton NSYY 2060 I 3
ortored Accountants A momber of the Nerlslar Group. Liability Utniled By 2 schome approved under protessional standarda leglslation. B 9954 9455 f 9954 3055
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JAB TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED AND CONTROLLED EMTITIES

Statement of Corporate Governance Practices
Corporate Governance Statement

This staterment outlines the main corporate governance practices in place under the headings contained in the ASX Corporate Governance
Council's "Principles of Good Corporate Governange and Best Practice Recommendations™ {*the ASX Principies™). (The Company is listed on the
Newcastle Stock Exchange, which does not prescribe comparable standards to the ASX Principles. The Company has therefore chosen {o have
regard to the ASX Principles).

Pringiple 1 - Lay solid foundations for management and oversight

The Board is responsible ta shareholders for the group's overall Corporate Govamnance. The Board delegates to the Chairman ar Chief Executive
Officer (CEQ) and the executlve team the responsibility for the operation and administration of the consolidated entity. The Board ensures that this
team is appropriately qualified and experlenced to discharge their responsibilities and has in place procedurss to assess performiance.

The key responsibiliies of the Board are fo:

= Establish, monitor and modify the corporate, business and tactical level strategles of the Company;
+  Ensure compllance with good corporate govemance and other requirements of the taw;

«  Monitor the performange of the Company and Its management;

=  Undertake a review of risks and further develop systems of internal cantrol,

«  Approve decisions conceming capital and majer expenditure; and

«  Engure proper disclosure to shareholders and other stakeholders,

Principle 2 - Structure the Board to add value

The eurrant Board of three members comprises of non-exacutive directors, The namas, skills, expesience of the dirgctars in office at the date of this
stalement and the period of office of each director are set out in the Directors’ Report contained in this Financial Report, The direstors believe that
the Board Is of sufficient composition, size and commitment te adequately discharge its responsibilities and duties.

Independence of Directors

Whilst all three of the Directors are Non-Exacutive Directors, they are not considered independent because of their Directorship or involvement with
VentureAxess Gapital Limited which holds a 72% interest in the Company Due to the size and nature of the Company, the Board does not considar
that a majority of Independant Directors is necegsary but wiil seek to appoint at least ane Independent Diractor during the course of the currant
year, The Board believes that the individual directors make quality and independent judgments in the best interests of the Company.

The Board distinguishes between the concepl of iIndependence and issues of conflict of interest and material personal interest, The Board's policies
and procedures ensure that interests in the malters are disclosed and that the relevant director is excluded from voting in mattars relating to conflict
of parsonal and material intgrest. Al directors are also able to obtain independent advice at the expense of the Company.

The composition of the Board will ba monitored to ensure that additional independent directors are appointed on a timely basis to fulfil specific skill

sets needed by the RBoard to discharge ils responsibllities competently and te meet ts obligations.

Chairperson of the Board

For the period to 1 May 2007 the chairperson of the Company was Reb Murdoch, who was a non-executive director until the resignation of Mr
Stephen loannides as Chief Executive Officar on 12 July 2008. For the period from 12 July 2006 to 1 May 2007, Mr Murdoch also assumed some
executive responsibilities within the Company,

On 1 May 2007 Geoff Mulling was appointed Non-Executive Chalrman of the Company.
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JAB TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED ANT CONTRGLLED ENTITIES

Statement of Corporate Governance Practices (continued)
Corporate Governance Statement (continued)
Principle 2 - Structure the Board to add value (continued)
Nemination

As Jab Technologies Limited has a relatively small Board it has not established a formal nomingtion committee. The whcle Board participates in
the selection of members of the Board, The Board has adopted a Nomination and Remuneration Policy.

The: Nomination and Remuneration Policy delegates o non-executive directors the responsibilities of:
+  Assesaing the necessary competencies of Board members to add value to the Company,
=  Reviewing the Board succession plans;
¢  Evaluating the Board's performance; and
«  Providing recommendations for the appointment and removal of members of the Board and Committees of the Board.

Principle 3 - Promote ethical and responsible decision making
Gode of Conduct

The Company Is firmly committed to ethical business practices, a safe workplace and compliance with the: law. Fair dealing with the Company's
suppliers, advisors, customers, employees and competitors is expected at al levels of the organisation. All directors, executive management and
smployees are expected to act with integrity to enhance the performance of the Group. The Company has establishad a Code of Conduct which
provides a quide to the Directors and employees as to the practices necessary to maintain corfidence In the Company's integrity and ethical
practices.

Trading in Gompany Securities by Directors, Officers and Employees

The Board has established written guidelines set out in its Corparate Ethics and Securities Trading Pollcy that sets guidelines for trading in the
Company's shares, The policy restricts the buying or selling of Company Shares within seven days prior 1o the release of the half yaar and annual
reparts and at any time during which the directors are aware of unpublished price sensitive information.

Principle 4 - Safeguard Integrity in financial reporting
Statement to the Board by the Chief Executive Officer and Chlef Financial Officer

At any time that the Company employs a Chief Executive Officer and/or a Chief Financial Officer, the Board requires that the Chief Executive
Officer and Chief Financial OFficer state in wiiting to the Board that the consalidated financia! statements of the Company and its controlled entities
present a true and fair view, In all material respects, of the Group's financial condition and operational results and are in accordance with applicable
accounting standards.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee operates under a Charter approved by the Board. ILis the Audit Committee's responsibility to ensure that an effective internal
control framework exists within the consolidated entity. This includes Intemal controls to deal with both the effectiveness and efficiency of
significant business pracesses, the safeguarding of assets, the maintenance of proper accounting records, and the reliability of financial information
a2 well as nondfinancial considerations such &s the benchmarking of eperational key performance indicators.

The rales and responsibilities of the Audit Committee are contained in a wiiten charter.

Some meatings of the Committes will be attended (by invitation) by any Chisf Executive CfficerManaging Director and/or Chief Financial Officer,
and the engagement partner from the Company's extemal auditors and also any such olher senior staff or professlonat people as are appropriate
from time to time. The Gompany ensures that at least one person present had financial experience and that some members had an understanding
of the activity carried out by the Company.

Following the appeintment of the new Directors to the Board, and the relocation of the Company's head office from Brisbane fo Sydney, the Audil
Commitiee detemined that there was a practical need for a change in the extemal auditor to a Sydney based praclice. Accordingly, the Board

appointed, with the consent of ASIC, Norhstar Accountants as Auditors, subject to the approval of shareholders at the next Annual General
Meating of tha Campany.
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JAB TECHNOQLOGIES LIMITED AMD CONMTROLLED ENTITIES

Statement of Corporate Governance Practices (continued)

Corporate Governance Statemant (continued)

Principle 5 - Make timely and balanced dlaclosure

The Company has established policies and proceduras designed to ensure compliance with the NSX Listing Rule requirements so that
announcements are made in a timely manner, are factual, do rot omit material information, are balanced and are expressed in a clear and objective
manner 5o 2s to allow investors to assess the information whan making investment decislons. The Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial
Officer are responsible for interpreting and monitoring the Gompany's disclosure poficy and the Company Secretary is responsible for all
communications with the NEX.

NSX announcements will alse be published in due course on the Company's website. The Company's Statement of Corporate Governance Pollcy
contains procedures relating to the timely and balanced disclosure.

Princlple 6 - Respect the rights of shareholders

The Company aims to keep shareholders informed of the Company's performance and all major developments in &n ongoing manner.  Jab
Technologies Limited regularly communicates to its shareholders in & imely manner through:

Relevant disclosures made in accordance with NSX Listihg Rule disciesure requirements;
Annual financial reports which are distributed to those that specifically request a copy;

Making documnents that have been released publicly available on the Company's website; and
Communicating with sharehalders electronically through the Company's web based application.

The Campany has requested that the extarnal auditor attend the annual general meeting and be available fo answer shareholder questions about
the conduct of the audit and the preparation and cantent of the auditor's report,

Principle 7 - Recognise and manage risk
Oversight of the risk management function

The Company recognises that it is necessary o undertake activities that involve a leval of risk in order to achleve high levels of performance. The
Board and Audlt Commitiee are responsible for the oversight of the Group's risk management and contral framework,

The size of the Company and the comprehensive nature of its reporting systems have led the Board to eonclude that a formal intemal audit process
would not be cost effective nor recuce risk, There is no formal Risk Management Policy, however the Company is focused on the identification and
managerment of sk Including: ‘

Establishing the Company's corporate levet and business level goals and monitering and implementing strategies to achieve these goals;
Identifying and measuring risks that might impact upon the achievement of the Company's goals and monitating for trends and emergent
factors,

s Reviewing the half-year reports and other reparts required to be lodged with the NSX; and

+  Establishing separate project teams to identify risk management strategies and monitoring the: risk and Implementation strategies for each
majot company project. The project managers report to the Board on 2 regular basis.

The Board believes that there are adeguats contrals to ensure that financial reports provide a truthful and factual position for the Company.
Cartification of risk management controls

The Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Gontraller are required to make an annual written statement to the Board with respect 1o risk
management and internal controls,

Principle 8 - Encourage enhanced performance

The Board undertakes an annual review of its performance and the performance of key executives, Directors were initially invited fo Join the Hoard
on the basis of their experience and gkills in refation to the Company's activities.

The performance criterla against which Directors’ and executives are assessed align with the Company's objectives. The Board has a

responsibility to ensure that executive remuneration is fair and reasonable, having regard 10 the competitive market for executive talent, structured
gifectively to motivate and retain valued executives, and designed o produce valu for shareholders,
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JAB TECHMOLOGIES LIMITED AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
Statement of Corporate Governance Practices (continued)

Corporate Governance Statement {continued)
Principle 9 - Remunerate fairly and responsibly

As Jab Technologies Limited has a refalively small Board it has not established 2 formal remuneration committee. The whale Board is responsible
for recommending and reviewing the remuneration arrangements for the directors, chief exscutive officer and senlor executive team,

The Nomination and Remuneration Policy requires that & majority of non-executive directors must approve changes to the rermuneration of contract
terms of Directors, the design of new remuneration packages, equity based remuneration packages, performance based remuneration, any cash-
based incentive plans and termination payments to Ditectars.

It Is the objective of Jab Technologies Limitad ta provide maximum stakeholder benefit from the retention of a high quality Board and executive
team by remunerating Directors and key executives faily and appropriately with reference to relevant employment market conditions. The
expected outcomes of the remuneration policy are;

+  Retention and motivation of key executives;
+  Aftraction of quality management to the Company; and
= Performance incentives, which allow executives to share the rewards of the success of the Gompany.

Executlve diractors are remunerated by means of a fixed baged remuneration. The Company is currently reviewing its remuneraticn policies and
practlces and considering the introduction of performance based and equity based remuneration. Non-execulive directors are entitled to director's
fees,  Non-executive directors are not entitied to any retifing allowance payable upon their retirement as a director of the Company.  The details of
{he Directors' and Senior Executives’ remuneration are set out in the Directors’ Report and in note 22 "Key management personne! disclosures’ in
the FInancial Report.

Principle 10 - Recognise the |egitimate interests of stakeholders

The Company recegnises its legal and other obligations including its responsibility to act in good faith and with integrity whilst dealing with
Company affairs. These responsibliitles relate to all stakeholders including clients, customers, suppliers, government, financial institutions,
shareholders and 1o the commurity &5 whole.

The Gompany is firmly committed to ethical business practices, a safe warkplzce and campliance with relevant laws including trade practices and
fair dealing |aws, consumer protection, privacy, employment law, occupational health and safely, equal employment oppartunity, superanniuation
and environmental laws.

As indicated under Pringipla 3, the Company has established @ Code of Gondugt te guide compliance with legal and other obligations.
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JAB TECHNOLOQGIES LIMITED AND CONTROLLED EMTITIES
Income Statement

For the year ended 30 June 2007 CONSOLIDATED PARENT ENTITY
Notes 2007 2006 2007 2006
§ $ $ $

Revenues from continuing operations ] 112,'.1'!45. 31,700 112,342 E 31,700
Finance costs B B {507) e (507}
Expenses from continuing operations 5 {375,800) N {619,438) O (arspon) {B5B8,521)
(Loss) before income tax 7 pesssn) (588,243)  (263d458) (837,328)
Income $ax (expense)irevenue 6 . 41808 . 72340 Mg 72,340
(Logs) from continuing operations L (515903 " (221,468) (554,586)

{Loss) attributabla to members of Jab

Technologles Limita " (@21489) (515,903) . (221,468 (554,988)
{Lozs) per share for (loss) attributable to the ) Canh - Cents
ordinary equity holders of the Company S
Basic (loss) per share (cents per sharg) 30 R V| (3.61)
Diluted (loss) per share (cents per shara) a0 , ('1;4551 T (3.61)
The above incoma statements should ba reed in conjuriction with the accompanying notas.
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Balance Sheet

JAB TECHNQLOGIES LIMITED AND CONTRQLLED ENTITIES

As at 30 June 2007 CONSOLIDATED FARENT ENTITY
Notes 2007 2006 2007 2006
$ $ $ §

Assets
Current assets o .

Cash and cash equivalents 7 BT R 123,598 123,598

Trade and other receivables 8 10,081 41,275 41,275

Other Assats 9 s 13,085 13,085

Total current assets 18519 177,958 177,958
Non-current asaets L

Deferred expense 10 LR 58,140 58,140

Property, piant and equipment 11 “ 37,803 37 803

Total non-current #ssels Y 95,943 95,943
Total assets 19,518 773,501 273,901
Liabilities
Current llabilitles : o

Trade and ather payables 12 . 68201 164,415 164,415

Provisions 13 e 3791 3,791

Total curent [iabilities ; - 68,201 168,206 168,206
Non-current llabilities L

Loans fram VentureAxess Capital 1% 173888

Limited L g

Total non-currert liabilities T . -
Total liabilities LY 168,206 168,206
Net assets (Jiabllities) D (a22,881) 105,895 105,595
Equity L

Contributed equity 5 2205088 2,215,805 2,215,805

Option holders’ equity RN S 96,140 98,140

Accumulated losses 7 R (2,206,250} (2,206,250)
Total equity T (222,681) 105,695 105,695

The abova balance sheets should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
ANNUAL REPORT 30 JUNE 2007 19

SEHYVHININAA

05TO6B660 XVd

Bg:E0 L00E TT/FT



JAB TECHNOLOQGIES LIMITED AND CONTROLLER ENTITIES

Statements of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 30 June 2007 CONSOLIDATED PARENT ENTITY
Notes 2007 2006 2007 2006
$ $ % §
Total equity at the beginning of the year 105805 134,486 : 183,571

Adjustment on adoption of AASB 132 . :

and AASE 139, net of tax - A .

Directors' options o " 119,398 119,396
::::aled total equity at beginning of the . : 1-11-5'-“'5 ‘ k 953,882 302,967
Profit ] {loss) for the year 56 @am) (616,903) ‘ (564,988)

oo (METM). . (262021) (18,774} . (262.021)

Option holders equity S (E640) (23,25) (96,140}  * (23,256)

Return of Capital relating to Jab Y . e

Rescurces Pty Ltd ‘

Transactions with aquity halders in their S

capacity as equity holders; Contributions © {10,766} - 300472 390,872

of equity, net of transaction costs ‘ ‘

Total equity (deficiency) at the end of the T
yaar © o (222,681) 105,895 106,695

Tutal recognised income and expense for Y

the year is afiributable to: Members of (221,469) (515,903) (564,988)

Jab Technologles Limited ‘

The above stetements of changes in equity should be reed it conjunction with the accompanying nofes.
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JAB TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED AND CONTROLLED EMTITIES

Cash Flow Statements

TZ0@A

For the year ended 30 June 2007 CONSOLIDATED PARENT ENTITY
Notes 2007 2006 2007 2006
$ § §
Cagh flows from operating activitles R .
GCash receipts from customers linclusive of goods S '”‘”:q""z“'aa" S
and services tax) . .H‘ - &7 46,797
Recelpt of R & [ tax concession o mpes 72,340 72,40
Payment to suppliers and employees (inclusive of PR (392}017}” (532,033) (532,023)
goods and sarvices tax) T
Interest paid L (807) (507)
Interest received 1,796 - 6,556 6,556
Net cash (outflow) from operating activities 27 (283969) {406,847) (406,847)
Cash flows from investing activities ‘ o
Payment for property, plant and equipment 11 " ) o {38,265) (38,283)
Payment for investment intangibles TR I {25,000 (25,000)
Payment (repayment) af security deposit C AR08 (13,085) (13.085)
Prox?eeds from sale of property, plant and . ‘ 18,?35 ) )
equipment
Net cash (inflow) from investing activities Vo mme T (78370) (76:370)
Cash flows from financing activitles S
Proceeds (repayments) from Offer Information L 83,985
Statement b (“'“5) o 63.985
Proceeds from issues of shares and other equity RGP
sacurities (net of transaction costs) o (19‘_?831; ‘ 30,972 300,972
Proceeds from Loans S ATAEER L - -
Debt forglveness L 60748 - -
Return of capital relating to Jab Resources Pty Lid SRR ¢ | - -
Net cash inflow from financing activitles " 135,596 o 474,957 474,957
Net increase (decrease) In cash and cash :;f‘ :‘ S
equivalents . .(l"l:‘ld,.,‘I:T.l‘})..;l.“ (B,260) (8,260)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the o 1123;53'3‘ CoE 131 858 131858
finangial year ‘ ' ‘ ' '
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 7 B 9,428 123,598 123,948

The above cash flow statements should be read in confunction with the accompanying noles.
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JAB TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
Notes to the Financial Statements

1. Summary of significant accounting policles

The principal accounting policies adopted In the preparation of the financial report are set out below. These policies have bean congistently applied
to all year presented, uniess otherwise stated.  The financial report includes separate financial statements for Jab Technologies Limited as in
individual entlty and the conzolidated entity consisting of Jab Technalegies Limited and its subsidiarles.

(a) Basls of preparation of year financial report

This genaral purpose financial report has been prapared in accordance with Australian equivalents fo Intemational Financial Reperting Standards
(AIRFS), other authoritative pronouncements of the Australian Accounting Standards Board, Urgent lssues Group Inferpretations and the
Corporations Act 2001.

Compliance with (FRS

Austrailan Accounting Standards include AIRFS. Complianca with AIFRS ensures that the consolidatad financial stalements and notes of Jab
Technologies Limited comply with International Reperting Standards (IFRS). The parant entity financlal statements and noles also comply with IFRS
except that it has electad 1o apply the relief provided to parent entities in respect of gertain disclosure requirsments contained In AASB 132 Financial
[nstrurnents: Presentation and Disclosures,

Historical cost convention

These financial stalements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of available-for-sale financial
assets, financial assats and liabilities (including derlvative instruments) at fair value through profil or loss, certain classes of property, plant and
equipment and investment property.

Critical accaunting estimatas

The preparation of financial statements in conformity wilh AIFRS requires the use of certain criticsl acoounting estimates. 1 also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the process of appiying the Group's accounting policies,  The areas involving a higher degreq of
judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant (o the financizl staternents are disclosed in note 3.

{b) Princlples of consolidation

(i Subsidiaries

The consolidated financizl statements incomorate the assets and liabilities of all subsidiaries of Jab Technologies Limiled ("company” or "parent
entity") as at 30 June 2007 and the results of all subsidiaries for the year then ended. Jab Technologies Limited and its subsidiaries together are
referred to In this financial report as the Group or the consolidated entlty.

Subsidiarles are all these entitles (including special purpose entities) over which the Group has the power to govem the financial and operating
policies, generally accompanying a shareholding of more than one-half of the veting rights. The existence and effect of potential veling rights that
are clirrently exercisable or convertible ara considered when assessing whether the Graup controls another entity.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the data on which control is transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated from the date thal contral
ceases,
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JAB TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

1. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(il Subsidiaras {confinued)
The purchase method of accounting is used to account for the acquisition of subsidiaries by the Group (reter to note 1{(h)).

Inter-company transactlons, balanees and unrealised gains on transactions between Group companies are efiminated. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unlegs the transaction pravides evidence of the impairment of the assel transferred.  Accounting polices of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary 10 ensure conslstency with the policles adopted by the Group.

Investmants in subsidiaries are sccounted for at cost in the individual financial statements of Jab Technologies Limited.

(i) Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant influence but not control, generally accompanying a shareholding of between 20%
and 50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates are accounted for in the parent entity financial statemnents using the cost method and in the
consolidated financial statements using the equity method of accounting, after initially being recognised at cost. The Group's investment in
associates includes goodwill {net of any accumulated impairmant |oss) identified on acquisition.

The Group’s share of its associates’ post-acquisition profits or losses is recognised in the income statement, and its share of post-acquisition
movements in reserves is recognised in reserves. The cumulative post-acquisition movements are adjusted against the carrying amount of the
investment. Dividends recelvable from associates are recognised in the parent enfity's income statement, while in the consalidated financlal
stalements they reduce the carrying amount of the investment,

When the Group's share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds |ts intersst in the associate, including any other unsecurad receivables, the
Graup does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate,

Unrealised gaing on transactions batween the Group and its associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group's interest in the associates.
Unreslised losses are also ellminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of
associates have been changed where necessary ta ensure consistency with the policles adopted by the Group.

(i) Joint Ventures

Joint venture operations

The proportionate interests in the assets, liabilities and expenses of a joint venture operation have been Incorporated in the financial statements
under the appropriate headings.

Joint venture entities

The interest in a joint venture partnership is accounted for in the consolidated financial statements using the equity methed and is carrled at cost by
the parent entity. Under the aquity method, the share of the profits or losges of the partnership is recognised in the income statement, and the share
of movements in reserves is recognised in reserves in the balance sheet.

Profits or losses on fransactions establishing the joint venture partnership and transactions with the joint venlure are efiminated to the extent of the
Group's ownership intarest until such time as they are realised by the joint venture partnership on congumption or sale, unleas they relate to an
unrealised |ess that provides evidence of the impaimment of an asset transfemed.

(¢} Segment reporting

A business segment is & group of assets and operations €ngaged in providing products or services that are subject to risks and retums that are
different to those of ofhar business segments. A geographical segment is engaged in providing praducts or services within a particular economic
environment and is subject to risks and retums that are different from those of segments operating in other economic environments. The Company
only operates in one segment being the Infermation Technology industry in Australia,

{d) Foreign currency translation

(i Functional and presentation curmency ‘ ‘

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the Group's entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic enviranment In
which the entity operates (‘the functional curency’). The consolidated financial statements are presented in Australian dallars, which is Jab
Technologies Limited's functional and presentation currency.

(i} ~ Trensactions and baiences

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the funetional eurrency using the éxchange ratés prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Foreign
exchange gains.and losses rasulting from the settlement of sueh trangactions and from the transtation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in forgign currencigs arg recognised in the income statement, except when defermed in equity as qualifying cash
flow hedges and qualifying net investmant bedgss,

Translation differences on non-monetary items, such as equities held at fair value through profit or loss, are reported as part of the fair value gain or
loss. Translation differences on non-monetary items, such as equities classified as available-for-sale financial assets, are included in the falr value
reserve in aquity,
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JABTECHNOLOGIES LIMITED AND CONTROLLED EMTITIES
Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

1. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

{i}  Group companios
The results and financial position of all the Group entities (none of which has the eurrency of a hyperinfiationary economy) that have a functional
currengy different from the presentation currency are fransiated into the presentation currency a3 follows:

+  assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are translated at the closing rate at the date of that balancs sheet;

» Income and expenses for each income statement are translated at average exchange rates (Unless this |15 not a reasonable
appraximation of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case income and expenses are
trangtated at the dates of the fransactions); and

»  all resulting exchange differences are recognised as a separate component of equity.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the translation of any net investment in foreign entities, and of borrowings and other currency
instruments designated a2 hedges of such investments, are taken to shareholders' equity. When a foreign operation is seld or homowings repaid a
praportionate share of such exchange differences are recognised in the income statement as part of the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments ariging on the acquisition of a foreign entity are lreated as assets and liabilities of the foreign entity and
franslated at the closing rate.

(&) Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Amounts disclosed as revenue are net of relumns, trade
allowances and duties and taxes paid,

The following specific recognition critaria must also be met before revenue is recognised:

*  provision of technology services — revenue from provision of technology services is recognised when the economic entity has performed
sarvices for the customer and billing for those services has occurred in accordance with contract terms and conditions; and
= Interest —interast revenue is recognised on an accrual basis,

{fi Income tax

The income tax expense Or revenue for the period is the tax payable on the current pariod's taxable income based on the notional incoms tax rate
for each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in defered tax assefz and liabilities attributable to temporary differences between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements, and to unusad tax losses.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised for temporary differences at the tax rates expected to apply when the assels are recavered or
ligbilities ara settied, based on these tax rates which are enacted or substantively enacied for each jurisdiction. The refevant tax rates are applied
to the cumulative amounts of deductible and taxable temporary differences o measure the deferred tax asset or liability. An exception is made for
certain temporary differences arising from the initial recognition of an asset or a llability. No deferred tax asset or liability is recognised in refation to
these temporary differences if they arose in a transaction, other than a business combination, that at the time of the transaction did not affect either
accounting profit or taxable profit or loss.

Deferred tax assets arg recognised for deductible temporary difierences and unused tax lnsses only if it is probable that future taxable amounts will
be available to utilisa those temporary differances and losses.

Deferred tax liabiliies and assets are not recognised for temporary differances between the canying amount and tax bases of investments in
controlled entities where the parent entity is ahle to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is protable that the
difierences will not reverse in the foreseaable future,

Current and deferred tax balances attributable to amounts recognised directly in equily are also recognized directly in equity.
Jab Teshnologies Limited and its wholly-owned Australian controfled entities have implemented the tax consolidation legislation,

(o) Leases

Leases of property, plant and equipment where the Group has substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified 3 finance lsases,
Finance leases are capitalised al the lease's inceplion at the lower of the fair value of the leased property and the present value of the minimum
lwase payments. The correspanding rental obiigations, net of finance charges, are included in other [ong term payables. Each |ease payment is
allocatad batwean the lisbllity and finance charges so 85 1o achieve a constant rate on the finance balance cutstanding.. The interest element of the
finance cost is charged to the income staternent over the lease period 86 83 to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance
of the liability for each period, The property, plant and equipment acquired under finance leases are depreciated aver the shorer of the assef's
useful iife and the lease tem.
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JAB TECHNQLOGIES LIMITED AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

1. Summary of significant accounting policies {continued)
{g) Leases (continued)

Leases in which a significant partion of the risks and rewards of ownarship are retained by the lessor are classified as operating leases, Payments
mada under operating leases (net of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged to the income statement on a straight-ling basia aver the
period of the lease.

Le:age Income from operating leases is recognized in income on g straightHine basis over the lease term.

{h} Buslness Comblnations

The purchase method of accounting i used to account for all acquisitions of assets (including husiness comblnations) regardiess of whether equity
Instruments or other assets are acquired. Cost Is measured as the fair value of the assets given, shares |ssued or llabilities incurred or assumed at
{he date of exchange plus costs directly atiibutable to the acquisition. Where equity instruments are issued in an agquisition, the value of the
instruments |s thelr published market price as at the date of exchange unless, in rare circumstances, it can be demonstrated that the published price
at the dale of exchange is an unreliable indicator of fair value and that other evidence and valuation methods provide a more rellable
meastire of falr value, Transaction costs anzing on the issue of equity instruments are recognised directly in equity.

dentifiabile assets acquired and Tiabilties and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured initially at their fair values af
the acquisition date, irespective of the extent of any minority interest, The excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair value of tha Grolp's share
of the Identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill (refer (o note 1{8). I the cost of acquisition is less than the fair valua of the net assets
af the subsidiary acquired, the difference is recognised directly In the income statement, but only after a reassessmant of the identification and
measurement of the net assets acquired.

Whera settlement of any parl of cash consideration is deferred, the amounts payabie in the future are discounted 10 their present valus s af the
date of exchange. The diacaunt rale used is the entity's incrernental borrowing rate, being the rate at which & similar borrowing could be obtained
from an independent financier under comparable terms and conditions.

()  Impalrment of assets

Assats that have an indefinite useful [fe are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment. Assels that are subject fo
amorlisation are reviewed for Impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the camying amaount may not be recoverable,
An impairment loss is recoghised for the amount by which tha asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is
the higher of an asset's fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, aésets are grouped at the lowest
levels for which there are separately |dentifiable cash flows (cash generating units).

{} Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents Includes cash on hand, depasits held at cail with financial institutions, other short-term, highly liquid investments with
original maturitias of three months or less that are readily convertible to known ameunts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafis are shown within bomowings in cLirent liabilities on the balance sheet.

(k) Trade recelvables

Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair valug snd subsequently measured at amorised cost, less provision for doubtful depts, Trade
raceivables are due for setlemant no more than 120 days fram the date of recognition for land development and resale debtars, and no more than
30 days for other deblors,

Collectibility of trade receivables is reviewed on an ongoing basis. Debts which are known to be uncollectible are written off. A pruvision for doubtful
recelvables is established when there is ohjective evidence that the Group will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the original terms
of recelvables. The amount of the provision is the difference between the asset's camying amount and the present value of eatimated future cash
flows, discounted at the effective interest rate. The amount of the provision is recognised in the income statement.

{i  Mon-current assets {or disposal groups) held for sale

Man-current assets (or disposal groups) are classified 25 held for sale and stated & the lower of their carrying amount and fair velus less costs to
sell if their carrying amount will ba recovered principally through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use.

An impairment foss is recognised for any initial or subsequent write down of the assel {or disposal group) ta falr value less costs to sell. A gain is
recognised for any subsequent increases in fair value less costs to sell of an asset {or disposal group), bul not in excass of any cumulatve
impaimment loss previously recognised. A gain or loss not previously recognised by the date of the sale of the non-current asset (or disposal group)
is recognised at the date of de-racognition.

Nen-current assets (including those that are part of a disposal group) &re nol depreciated or amortised while they are classified as held for sale.
Interest and other expenaes attributable to the labllitles of @ disposal group classiiied as held for sale continue to be recagnised.
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JAB TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED AMD CONTROLLED ENTITIES
Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

1. Summary of significant accounting policles (continued)
(}  Non-current assets (or disposal groups) held for sale (continued)

Non-current assels classified as held for sale and the assets of a disposal group classified as held for sale are prasertad separately from the othar
asgets in the balance sheet, The liabilities of a disposal group classified as held for sale are presentad separately from other liabillties In the balance
sheet.

(m) Investments and other financlal assets

The Group classifies its investments in the following categories: financial assets at fair value through peofit or loss, koans and receivables, held-to-
maturity investments, and avaiiable-for-sale financial assets. The classification depends on the purpese for which the investments were acquired.
Management detetmines the classification of its investmants at initial recognition and re-evaluates this designation at each reporting date.

{i)  Financiaf assets af fair value through profit or logs

This category has two sub-categories: financial assets held for rading, and those designated at fair value through profit or loss on initial recognition.
A financial asset is classified in this eategary if acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the: shor 1arm or f so designated by management.
The policy of menagsment is to designate a financial asset if there exists the possibiity it will be sold In the short term and the asset is subject to
fraquent changes in fair value. Detlvatlves are also categorised as held for trading unless they are designated as hedges. Assets in this category
are classified as curment assets if they are either held for trading or are expacted to be realised within 12 months of the balance sheet date.

(i) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are nol quoted in an aclive market. They arisa
when the Group provides money, goods or servicas directly to a debtor with no intention of seling the receivable. They are Included in current
assels, except for thase with maturities greater than 12 months after the balance sheet date which are classlfied as nan-current assets. Loans and
receivables are inchuded in recelvables in the balance sheet,

(i} Held-to-maturiy investments
Hefd-to-maturity investmants are nen-derlvative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed malurities that the Group's
management has the positive Infention and ability to hold to maturity,

(iv)  Available-for-sale financial assets

Avallable-for-sale financial assets, comprising principally marketable equity securities, are non-detivatives that are either designated in this category
of not classified in any of tha other categories. They are included in non-curent assets uniess management intends to dispose of the investment
within 12 monihs of the balance sheet date.

Purchases and sales of investments are recognised on trade-date - the date on which the Graup commits to purchase or sell the assel, Investments
are initially recognised at fair value plus fransaction costs for all financial assets not carried at falr value through profit or loss, Financial assets are
derecagnised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have: expited or have been transfared and the Group has Iransferied
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership.

Availablefor-zale financial assels and financial asasts at fair value through profit and loss are subsequently camied =t faic value. Loans and
receivables and held-to-maturity investments are carrled at amartised cost using the effective interest method, Realised and unrealised gaing and
osses arising fram changes in the fair valus of the financlal assets at fair value through profit or loss” category ane included in the incoms stalament
in the period In which they arise. Unrealised gains and losses arising from changes In the falr valug of non monetary securilies classifisd a8
available-for-sale are recognised in equity in the avallable-for-sale investments revaluation reserve, When securities classified as available-for-gale
are sold or impairad, the accumulated fair value adjusiments are included in the income staternent as gains and losses from Investment securities.
The fair values of quoted investments are based an current bid prices. f the market for a financial asset is not active: (and for unlisted securities}, the
Group establishes fair value by using valuation tachniques. These include reference to the falr values of recent arm's lenglh Iransactions, involving
the same instruments or other instruments that are substantially the same, discaunted cash flow analysis, 2nd option pricing models refined to reflect
the issusr's specific cireurmnstances.
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JAB TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED AND CONTROLLED EMTITIES
Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

1, Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
{m} Inveatments and other financial assets (continued)

{ivy  Avallabie-for-sale financial assets (confinued) .

The Group assesses at each balance date whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets Is Impaired. I the
case of equity securities classified as availablie for sale, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of a security below ils cost is considered in
determining whether the security is impaired, If any such evidence exists for available-for-sale financial assets, the cumulative loss - measured as
the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any impairment l0ss on that financlal asset previgusly recognised in profit
and loss - is removed from equity and recognised in the income statement, Impaitment losses recognised in the income statement on equily
instruments are not reversed through the income statement.

(n}  Falr value estimation
The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities must be estimated for recognition and measurement or for disclosure purposes.

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets {such as publicly traded derivaiives, and trading and availuble-for-sale secunfies) is
based on quoted market prices at the balance shest data, The quoted market price used for financial assets held by the Group is the current bid
price: the appropriate quoted market price for financial liabilities is the current ask price.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, overdha-counter derivalives) is delenmined using
valuation techniques. The Group uses 2 variety of methods and makes assumptions that are based on market condilions existing af each balance
date. Cuoted market prices or dealer quetes for similar instruments are Used for long-erm debt instruments neld.  Otter technigues, such as
sstimated discounted cash flows, are used to determine fair value for the remaining financial instruments. The fair velue of interest-rate swaps is
calculated 28 the present value of the estimated future cash flows, The fair value of forward exchange contracts is determined using forward
exchange market rates at the balance sheet date.

The nominal value lass estimated credit adjustments of trade receivables and payables are assumed to approximate their fair values. The fair valug
of financial liabilities for disclosure purposes is estimated by discounting the future contractual cash flows at the current market Interest rate that is
available to the Group for similar financial instruments.

{o) Property, plant and equipment

Land and bulldings {except for investment properties are shown at falr value, based on pariodic, but al least triennial, valuations by external
independant valuers, less subsequent depreciation for buildings. Any accumulated depreciation at the date of revaluation is eliminated against the

~ gross carrying amount of the asset and the net amount i restated to the revalued amount of the aasel. Al olher property, plant and equipment are
stated at historical cost less depreciation, Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the ilems. Cost may
alse include transfers from equity of any gains/losses on qualifying cash flow hedges of foreign currency purchases of property, plat and
agUipment,

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's cafrying amount of recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
sconoiic benefits associated with the tern will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. Al other repalrs and
maintenance are charged to the income statement during the: financial period in which they are incurred.

Increases in the carrying amounts arising on revaluation of [and and bulidings are credited to othier reserves in shareholders’ equity. To the extent

that the: increase reverses a decrease previously recognised in proflt or loss, the increase is first recognised in profit and loss. Decreases that

reverse previous increases of the same asset are first charged against revaluation reserves directly In equity to the extent of the rermaining reserve

attributable to the asset; ali other decreasas are charged to the income statement.

Land is not depreciated. Depreciation on other assets is calculatsd using the straight fine method lo allocate their cost or re-valued amount, net of
their residual values, over their estimated useful lives.

The assets' residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted If apprepriate, at each balance sheet date. Deprecigtion of plant and
equipment has Heen aver Individual usaful life of 5-10 years.

An asset's camying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount If the assel’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount (note 1(1).

Giains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are included in the income statemant, When re-
valliad assets are sold, it is Group policy to transfer the amounts included in other reserves in respect of those assets to retained eamings.

{p) Intangibie ascets

Expencliiure on research activities, undertaken with the prospect of obtaining new technical knowledge and understanding, is recognised in the
income statement as an expense when it is incurred,
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JAB TECHNQOLOGIES LIMITED aND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

1. Summary of significant accounting pollcies {continued)
() Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Group prior to the end of financial year which are unpaid. The amounts
are unsecured and are usuzlly pald within 30 days of recognition.

{r} Provisions

Provigiona for legal claims and sarvice warranties are recognised whan: the Group has a present kegal or constructive obligation &z & result of pasl
avents: it |s more likely than nat that an outflow of resources will be required 1o settle the obligation; and the amount has been reliably estimatsd.
Provisions are not recognised for fulure operating losses,

Where there are a number of similar obligatians, the likelihood that an outtlow will be required in settlement is determined by consldering the class of
obligations s @ whole. A provision is recognised even If the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the same class of
obligations may be small,

(8} Employee benefits

(il  Wages and salaries, annual lsave and sick leave

Lisbilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits, annual leave and accumulating sick leave expected to be settled within 12
months of the reporting date are recegnised In other payables in mspect of employess' services up to the reporting date and are measurad at the
ampurts expected ta be paid when the llabilties are settied, Liabilities for non-accumulating sick leave are recogrised when the leave is tzken and
maeasuted at the rates paid or payable.

(i} - Long service leave .

The liabllity for iong service leave is recognised in the provision for employee benefits and measured as the present value of expected future
payments to be made in respect of services provided by employees up to the reporting date using the projected unit credit method. Consideration is
given 1o expected future wage and salary levels, experience of employee departures and periods of service, Expecled fulure paynients are
discounted using market yields at the reporting date on national government bonds with terms to maturlty and curmency that match, as closely as
possible, the estimated future cash autilows,

fili)y  Share-based payments
Where ahare-based compansation benefits are provided to employees via an employee option plan and an employee share scheme, the following
apply:

Sharas opllons granted before 7 November 2002 andfor vestad befare 1 January 2005
No expense Is recognised in respect of these options. The shares are recognised when the aptions are exerclsed and the proceeds received
allocated to share capital.

Shares vptions granted affer 7 November 2002 end vested after 1 January 2005
The fair valug of aptions granted is recognised as an employee bensfit expense with a corresponding increase in equily. The fair value s measured
at grant date and recagnised over the period during which the employses become unconditionally entitled to the optlons.

Shares options granted after 7 November 2002 and vested after 1 Januery 2005 {cantinued) .

The fair value at grant date is Independently determined using a Biack-Schales option pricing model that takes into account the exercise price, the
tarm of the option, the vesting and performanca criteria, the impact of dilution, the non-radeabls natura of the aption, the share prive at grant date
and expetted price volatility of the underlying share, the expecied dividend yield and the risk-free imerest rate for the term of the optlon.

The £air value of the options granted excludes the impact of any non-market vesting condiions (for example, profitabiity and sales orowth targets}.
Nan-market vesting conditions are included in dssumptions about the number of options that are expacted to become exercisable. At each balance
sheet date, the entity ravises s esfimate of the number of options that are expecied to become exercisable. The employes benefil expanse
recognised each period takes into acoount the most recent estimate.

Upon the exercise of options, the balance of the share-based payments reserve relating to thase options is fransfemed 1o share capital.

The market value of shares issued to employees for no cash consideration under the employee share scheme s recognised 25 an empioyae
benefits sxpense with a corresponding increase in equity when the employees become entitled {o the shares, :

() Contributed equity
Ordinary shares are classified a3 equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equily as &

deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds. Incremental costs directly attributable to 1he Issue of new shates or options, or for the acquisilion of
business, ar included in the cost of the acquisition as part of the purchase consideration.
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JAB TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

1. Summary of significant accounting policles (cortinued)
{u) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are recognised as expenses in the period in which they are incurred excapt to the extent they are included in the costs of qualifying
Bsgets,

{v) Earnings per share

{}  Basic samings per share

Basic eamings per share is calculated by dividing the profit atiribitable to equity holders of the company, exciuding any costs of servicing equity
other than ordinary shares, by the weighted average number of ordinary shares oulstanding during the year, adjusted for bonus elements in ordinary
shareg lasued during the year.

(i) Dilufed earnings per share

Diluted earmings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic eathings per share to take into account the after income tax effect
of intarast and ether financing costs associated with dilutive potertial ordinary shares and the weighted average number of shares assumed to have
been issued for na consideration in relation to dilutive potential ordinary shares.

(w) Goods and services tax

Revenlies, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of good and services tax (GST), except where the amount of GST incurred is not
recoverable from the Australian Tax Offica (ATQ). In these circumstances, the GST is recognised as part of the cost of acquigition of the asset or as
part of the itam of expense. Receivables and payables are stated with the amount of GST included. The net amount of GST recoverable from, or
payable to, the ATO is included as a current asset or liabllity in the Statement of Financial Position. Gash flows arlsing from oparating acfivities are
included in the siaterment of cash flows on a net basis, The GST component of cash fiows arlsing from investing and financing aciivities which are
recoverable from, or payable to the AT, are classified in aperating cash flows. ‘

(x) Financial instrument transaction cozts

The Group has taken the exemption available under AASE 1 to apply AASE 132 and AASB 139 from 1 July 2005. The Group has applied previous
Australizn GAAP (AGAAP) in the comparative Information an financial insfruments wilhin the scope of AASB 132 and AASH 139, Under previous
AGAAP transaction costs were excluded from the amounts disclosed in the financial statements. Under AIFRS such costs are included in the
carrying amaunts. Al the date of fransition to AASB 132 and AASB 139 the adjustment to carying amounts for the Group was immaterial.

(y) Rounding of amounts

The company is of a kind referred to in Class order 98/0100, issued by the Ausiralian Securifies and Investments Commission, relating to tha
"reunding off of amounts in the: financlal report,. Amounts in the financial repert have been rounded off in accordance with that Class Order to the
rearest dollar,

(z) Going concern

This financial report has been prepared on a going concern basis, which contemplates the cortinuity of narmal business activities and realisation of
agsets and discharge of liabilities in the ordinary course of buginess.

The company and consolidated eniity have Incurred a loss from ordinary activities after income tax of $221,469 for the year ended 30 June 2007
(2006; loss of $515,903). The company and consolidated entity were also In a net deficit position of 4227 681 as at 30 June 2007 {2006: net assets
$105.95). As & result of the financial position of the company outlined above, there s significant uncerlainty whether the company and
consolidated entity will continue as a going concern and, therefora, whether It will realise ils assets and seftle its liabilities and commitments (n the
normal course of bualness and at the amounts stated in the financial raport. ‘

The continuation of the: company and consolidated entity as a going concem is dependent upon their ability to achieve the following.

«  Obtzining additional faciites, funding or capital from financiers, sharehalders, directors andfor related parlles to enable the company and
consolidated entity to achieve a sufficient working cash flow level,
«  The generation of future profits by the major underlying business.

In the event that the company or consolidated entity does not achieve its objectives, there is significant uncertinty whether the company or
consolidated entity will continue: as a going concam and, therefore, whether it will realise ite assets and exfinguish its iiabilities in lhe normal course
of business and at the amounts stated in the financial statements. The financial report does not include any adjustments relating to the
recoverability and classification of recorded asset amounts nor to the amounts and classification of llabilities that might be necessary should the
company and consolidatad entity nat continue as going concerns.
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JAB TECHNQLQGIES LIMITED AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Financlal risk management

The Group’s activities expose it to & varlety of financial risks; market risk {Including price risk), credit risk, epuichity risk and cash flow risk, The Group's
overall risk management program focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potentizl adverse effects on the financial
performance of the Group. The liquidity risk has been outlined in note 1z,

The Group has no significant concentrations of credit rigk.

Risk management is caried out under policies approved by the Board of Directors. The Board provides principles for overall rigk management, as
well 25 policles covering specific areas. ‘

Ag the Group has no significant interest-bearing assets, long ferm barowings and significant cash assels, the Group's income and operating cash
flows are not materially exposed to changes in market interest rates.

3. Critical accounting estimates and Judgements

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and arg based on historical experience and other factors, including expactations of future events
that are belleved to be reasonable under the circumstances. The Group makes estimates and assumpfions concerning the future.  The: resulling
accounting esimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual resuits.

{(a)  Critical acoounting estimates and assumptions

Impairmant of Azsets
The Group tests annually whether various assets have suffered any impairment, in aceordance with the accounting policy stated in note 1.

Income Taxes

The Group is sibject to-income taxes in Australia and jurisdictions where it has foreign operations. Significant judgement is required in determining
the warldwide provislon for income taxes. There are many transactions and calculations undertaken during the ordinary cuurse of business for which
the ultimate tax determination is uncertain, The Group recognises liabiliies for anticlpated tax audit fssues based on estimates of whether additional
taxes will be dug. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were inlilally recorded, such difierences will impact
the current and deferred tax provisions in the peried in which such deterrmination is made.

()  Critical judgements in applying entity's accounting policies

There were no critical judgements made excapt for the treatment of directors’ options which are outfined in Note 22 Key Managerment Fersonnel
Disclosures,

4. Segment reporting

The main product of Jab Technolagies Limited is called EZBIZ, Jab Technologies and its conjrolled entilies have not presented a segment report as
the group operates in a single business and geographical segment,
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5, Profitf{loss) forthe year

Profit/{lass) for the year includes
the: followlng revenues and
axpenses

Revenues from continuing
operations;
Sales

Interest received — unrelated
parties

Qther Income

Froceads from sale of fixed
assets

Debt forgiveness income

Total revenue from continulng
actlvities

Expenzes from continuing
achivities
Advertising
Audit fees
Accounting fees
Borrowing Costs
Employee benefits
lsonsulting fees
Directors’ fees
Depreciation
Insurance
Impairment expensa
Cccupancy expensas
Research and Development
Write off of investment
Directors’ options
Legal fees
Carrying value of assets sold
Hire of Equipment

Gomputer Expenses
General administralion
expenses

Total expenzes from continuing
activities

JAB TECHNGLOGIES LIMITED AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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CONSOLIDATED PARENT ENTITY
Note 2007 2006 2007 2008
3,05 015 7 aee 20,155
4,798 6,556 e 6,556
B 4,989 4,989
16,739 - -
a0,48 — —
112,342 31,700 31,700
- 5537 LT 5,537
10605 " UMz000 10,605
S 0 :
807 - 507
57,717 57717
290805 250,605
13,200, 13,200
; 8034 8,034
i 6,460 6 460
5000 25,0010
8 15,160 ; 15,180
30310 30,310
SR - 52,286
0 . (@sgony 38,000 ° 36,000
L arEm IR 11,751
- 7374 7374
T e 7,33 : 7363
86,148 92,320 89,119
e srogss . aTEB00 669,028
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JAB TECHNCLOGIES LIMITED AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

6. Income tax CONSOLIDATED PARENT ENTITY
2007 2006 2007 2008
¥ $ _ L . 5

{a) ‘The components of income tax expensel(revenue): . T '

Currant tax - - L. .
Defarrad tax - - - . .
Under {over) provision in prior years {41,980) (72,340) (41'959) (72,340)
‘Total Income tax expanse/(revanue) @1989) (72,340) '  (41,909) (72,340)

(b} The prima facie tax on profiti{loss) differs from the
income tax provided in the Ainancial statements as

follows: , .
Total profitiloss) before income tax (263458)  (508.243) . (63458) (637 328)
Atthe statutory income tax rate of 30% (2008: 30%) (o0 (76473 T @ (175513)

Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible (taxable) in
caledlating taxable Ineome,

Amortisation of intangible assets . 7,500 I a 7,500
Directors’ options expense (credit) (11,400) 11,400 (11,400) 11,400
Debt forgiveness income : (18,224) - 7 ez T -
Business related capital items e - -
Write down of invastment - ' - : - 15,685
(108,681)) (57573 {106,661) (156,613)
et m s e e g e e o
Benefil of research and development tax offset (41,989) (72,340) T (@989 {72,340)
Income tax expensef(revenue) (41,989) (r23a0) (#1989 72,340

The income tax banefit has resulted from a research and development tax offset received from the Australian Taxation Cffica.

Jab Technologies Limited and its wholly-owned Australian controlled entitles have implemented the tax consolidation legislation as of 4 September
2004. The accounting policy in relation ta this legislation is set out in nate 1(f).

On adoption of the tax consolidation legislation, the entities in the tax conselidated group entered into & tax sharing agreement which, in the: opinion of
the directars, limits the joint and several listillty of the wholly-owned entities in the case of a default by the head entity, Jab Technologies Limited.

The entities have also enterad into 2 tax Junding agreement under which the wholly-owned entities fully compensate Jab Technologies Limited for any
current tax payable assumed and are compenzated by Jab Technologies Limited for any current tax receivable and deferred tax asses relating to
unused tax losses or unused tax eredits that are transferred 1o Jab Technologies Limited under the tax consolidation legisiation. The funding amounts
are determined by reference ta the amounts recognised In the wholly-owned entities’ financlal statements.

The amounts recelvable/payable under the 1ax funding agreement is due upon receipt of the funding advice from the head endity, which is iasued as
soon as practicable after the end of each financial year. The head entity may also mauire payment of interim funding amaunts to assist with ils
obligations to pay tax instalments. The funding ameunts are recognised as current inter-company recelvables or payatles.

Jah Technologies Limited has recognised no tax conselidation distribution from a wholly-owned tax consolldated entlty.
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JAB TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

7. Current assets - Cash and cash equivalents

Cash at bank and on hand {Note 27} (), (b)
{a) Bank Interest

CONSOLIDATED PARENT ENTITY
2007 2006 2007 2006
5 S T §
o4z e R Y ' I 123,59

The bank interest rate for the period for cash at bank wag 5.25% (2006: 5.25%).

(b) Offer Information Statement

The cash at bank for 2008 includes application monies totalling $83,985 from the offer information statement which was refunded to applicants on 14

July 2008,
8, Current assets — Trade and other receivables CONSOLIDATED PARENT ENTITY

2007 2006 2007 2006

$ b 5 §
Trade debtors - 637 I . 837
Sundry Debtors . ser2 L 25 472
Other recaivables (including GST recelvable) 10,091 5242 10081 5,242
Prepayments . 9,524 - 9,524

10,801 41,275 10,001 41,275

Interest rate risk

Infarmation conceming the effective interest rate and credit risk of both current and non-cumrent receivables is set aut in note 20.

9.  Gurrent assets — Other assets

Bank guarantse

The hank interest rate far the perlad for the bank guarantee wasdT%h

10. Non-current agsets - Deferred expense
Deferred aption expense

ANNUAL REPORT 30 JuUNE 2007

CONSOLIDATED PARENT ENTITY
2007 2008 2007 2006
L3 ] ‘ $ §
. 13,085 - 13,085
. 13,085 _ o 13,085
. 58,140 P 58,140
- 58140 ‘ . 58,140
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JAB TECHNOQLOGIES LIMITED AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

11.  Non-current assets - Property, plant and CONSOLIDATED PARENT ENTITY
equipmant

2007 2006 2007 2006

s 5 5 §
Plant and egquipment: ‘ ‘ o
Opening balance 118,867 80,562 18867 80,582
Additions e 38,285 I 38,285
Disposals {118,867) . - {118,667). -
Closing value . 118,867 . 118 867
Accumulated depreciation . S
Opening balance (31,064) (73,030 (B1,IJ§'4} ‘ {73,030)
Depreciation for the year (15,339) (|033) (15339 (B.034)
Disposals (96,403) - (86,403) -
Closing value - (81,064) - (81,064)
Total property, plant and equipment (net ) - 37,803 L 37,803
12, Gurrent llabtlities - Payables
Trade payables and accruals ' 66,201 164,415 88,201 164,415

68,201 164415 68,201 164,415

Offer Information Statement

[n 2006 the trade payables included an amount of 583,885 which was received in allotment monays from the Offer Information Statement and
subsequently refunded to share applicants on 14 July 2006,

13,  Current liahilitles - Provisions
Employes bengfits- annual leave - 3,791 : . 3791

. 3,79 ‘ - 3,7

14.  Nen-current liabilities

VenturaAxess Capital Limited - Converting Loan Note 52,000 - - st .
- other loans 121,899 - \ 121,999 -
173,888 - - 173,898 -

The Converting Laan Nate with VentureAxess Capital Limitad was antared into on 4 April 2007 and carries interest at 10%
per annum caloulated on a dally basis. The Loan Note converts into ordinary shares of the Company at $0.075 per share,

subject to the approval of the shareholders of Jab Technologies Limited. Other lnans carry interest at 10% per annum with
repayment or corversion into ordinary shares to be agreed. VentureAxess Capital Limited has agreed to defer repayment of
its loans in favour of other ereditors of the Company.
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JAB TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

15. Contributed Equity PARENT ENTITY PARENT ENTITY
2007 2006

Number of Shares $ Number of Shares s
Iszued and pald up capital
Ordinary shares fully paid 1GEEZEN 2215805 14852911 9 215,805
Movemants n shares on issue T o
On issue at the beginaing of the year 1&.361,911” 2;z1ls,an5 n 11,047 882 1,524 B33
Diztribution of Jab Resources Limited shares o U |
Progpectus lssued at 20 cents- 09/09/2005 T e 2,915,029 533,006
lssue Costs . 10,766} (192,034)
On issue at end of the ysar 744862811 2205038 14862911 2,215,805

Options to acquire issued capltal

Each option entitles the holder to purchases one share. The names of alf persons who currently hold share options, granted at any time, are gntered in
the: register kept by the Company, pursuant 1o Section 168 of the Corporations Act 2001, which may be inspecled frea of charge. Persons entitled to
gxercise these options have no right, by virtue of the options, to participate in any share Issue by the parent entity or any other body corporate.

Movement in the numbers of options to acquire share

capital are as follows: Exercise Price Number of Options
20 cents .07 2006
D Issue at the beginning of the year © B;Bes029 6,000,000
lssied during the year - . 2,865,029
On issue at the end of the year o nge5029 8,865,029
Expiry Date:
31 Dacember 2009 convertible at 20 cents (JABO1)
16. Option holders’ equity PARENT ENTITY
2007 2006
$ $
Restatement of tatal equity al beginning of financial year S AT R 119,396
I.oss effect of market cendition not satisfied S840 {23,256)
Option holders' eculty at end of financial year I S 96,140

As market conditions for the vesting of these options were not atlained, and the persons entitied to these optians have left the Company the Qption
Helders Equity has been written back to the profit and loss account, net of prepaymenis carrled in debtors.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

17, Accurmulated Losses

Balance at beginning of year

Nel profit (loss) attributable o members of Jab

Technologles Limited
Balance at end of year

18, Commitments

JABTECHNOQLQOGIES LIMITED AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES

{#) Lease commitments: Group company as lessen

Commiltrments in relation to leases contract for at the

repatting date but not recognised as liabilities, payabls;

Within one year

Later than one year but not |ater than five years

Later than five years

Operating leases

The Group nagotiated the cancellation of its fagsed offices during the year.
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CONSOLIDATED PARENT ENTITY
2007 2006 2007 2006
$ $ $ $
C@asas)  (1690347) (2208280 (1,641,262)
" (221,489) (15903 @ eeE) (564,386}
@anTe) (2,206,250) EATTE) T (2,206,250)
CONSOLIDATED PARENT ENTITY
2007 2006 2007 2006
$ § $ $
16,725 16,725
107,040 107,040
123,765 123,765
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JAB TECHNQLOGIES LIMITED AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

20. Key management personinel disclosures

(a) Directors
Tha following persong were directars of Jab Technelogies Limited during the financial year:
()  Chairman- non executive

Robert Murdoeh — appeinted May 1999 - resigned 1 May 2007
Geoff Mulling - appainted 1 May 2007

(i) Executive director
Stephen loannides - appeinted CEO 12 July 2004 - resigned as CEO 12 July 2006 - resigned as a Director 22 February 2007

{lif} Non Executive directors
Sean Stark - Director since 17 November 2004 - resigned 1 May 2007
Emyr Jones — appointed 1 May 2007
Karalyn Day — appointed 1 May 2007

When Stephen loannides resigned from the position of Chief Executive Officer on 12 July 2008, Robert Murdoch assumed the responsibllities for
the day 1o day operatlons of the Company until his resignation as a Director of the company.

(b)  Other key management personnel

No other persons had authority and responsihility for planning, direeting and controlling the activities of the Group, directly or indirectly, during the
financial year.

{t} Key Management personnel compensation

CONSOLIDATED PARENT ENTITY
2007 2006 2007 2006
Short-term employee benefits o 117 816 o “ 117,816
Post-employment benefits . . T4 - 7437
Share-based payments . - ‘ -
- 125,253 o - 125,253

The Company has taken of the relief provided by ASIC Class Qrder 08/50 and has transferred the detailed remuneration disclosures to the
Directors' Report. The relevant information can be found in sections A-D of the remuneration report on pages & - 10,

Equity instrument disclosures to kay management personnel
()  Oplions provided as remuneration and shares issued an exercise of such options

Details of opliohs provided as remuneration together with the terms and conditions of the options can be found in section D of the Remuneratlon
report of Directors' Report on page 9.
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JAB TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

20,  Key management personnel disclosures (continued)

Option Holdings
The number of options over ordinary shares in the company had during the financial year by each Director of Jab Technology Limited and ather
key management personngl of the Group, ingluding thelr personally related parties are set out Delow:-

Balance at Granted Sold Balance at Vested and
the start of duting the during the theend ofthe  exercisable at
the year year a8 year year the end of the
Nama: compensation year
Directors: o ‘ ‘ o
R. Murdoch . 2007 190,268 . C(1e0@28) . .. o -
2006 180,268 - - 190,268
S. Stark .2007 40,000 . (40,000 T,
2008 40,000 ‘ - - 40000
S.loannides 2007 . . . - oo
2006 - - - - -
G Mulling 2007 - - . - -
E Jones 2007 - - oo - S .
K Day 2007 - - “ L T

There were no ather key management personnel during the year
It i noted that the optians held by R. Murdoch were the result of an investment in the Company and did not result for a remuneration package.

Share Holdings

The number of shares In the Company held during the financial year by each Director of Jab Technalegies Limited and other key management
persannel of the Group, Including their personally related parties are set out below. There are no shares granted during the period as

compensation.
Balanca at the start of Sold during Balance at end of
Name the year the year the year
Directors: ‘ R , .
R. Murdoch 2007 1,315,750 C (1315740
2006 o 1,268,259 . 47 491
& Stark 2007 145000 . (1450000 e
2006 145,000 - 145,000
8. loannides 2007 - samm (583,751). S e
2006 BB3ETY oSt
G Mulling 2007 . . - e
E Jones 2007 - e '
K Day 2007 T T TUR R

There wera na ather key management personnel during the year.

Other director transactiona

During the year Murdoch Geosciances Pty Lid, a company associated with Mr. Robert Murdoch, charged $27,500 (2006 - $16,219) to the enty for his
consultaney services,

During the year Jaz Seftware Pty Ltd, 2 company associated with Mr, Stephen loannides, invoiced 58,550 (2006 - 5127,888) to the entity for his
consultancy services provided.

Duuring the year Sean Stark, invoicad $24,200 (2005 - $32,850) to the enfity for his cansultancy services provided.

21. Remuneration of auditors CONSOLIDATED PARENT ENTITY
2007 2006 2007 2006
During the year the auditors of the parent company and 15 related B coo T _
practices earned the following remuneration:
Pitcher Partners
Audit ar review of financial reports of the entiy or any entity inthe : L v ong - 10,605 o 10,605
corsolidated entity (2007 - half-year accounts only) ' L T'OM 0.8 N
Taxatlon and other servicas e L 18,680 . 18,680
C 18,744 29,285 29,285
Northstar Accountants (2007 - year end audit only) ‘ 3,000 - 5,000 -
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JAB TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED AND CONTRCLLED ENTITIES
Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

22, Contingent azsets and liabliitles
(a) Contingent liabilities
The parent entity and Group are not aware of any contingent liabifities that need to be disclosed as at 30 June 2007,

() Contingent assets
The parent entity and Group are not aware of any contingent assets that need to be disclosed as &t 30 June 2007.

23. Investments in controlled entlties as at 30 June 2007

Country of Main Percentage Ownership
Incorporation and Business
Principal Country of
Qperation
2007 2006
% %
Controlled entities e
Jab Creative Pty Ltd Australia Dormant 1004 100%
RadioCity.com.au Pty Lid Australia Dormant ‘ % 100%

The financial years of al controfled entities are the same as that of the parent. All controlied entities operate solely in thelr place of incorporation.

24. Employee benefits CONSOLIDATED PARENT ENTITY
2007 2006 2007 2006
. i L3 % $
Employee benefit and related on-cost liabilities ‘ ' )
Included in trade erediors 1,288 - 1,208 -
Included in accruals - 1,342 Co 1,342
Provigion for employee benefits — current - 3Ty 3,791

Provision for employee benefits — non-current - - o .

Aggregate ampluyes benefit and related party on-costs labilities ©T7 4,208 i3s3 T T 5,133

As explained in note 1(s) amounts for long service leave that are expected to be settled more than 12 months from the reparting date are measured at
their prasent values, The average number of employees during the year was 0 (2006 - 2).
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JAB TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

25. Reconciliation of Profit from ordinary activities after income tax to net cash flow (used In) operating activities

(2} Reconclllation of cash

For the purpase: of the Statements of Cash Flows, cash includss cash on hand and in banks and deposits at call, net of bank overdrafts. Cash af the end
of the yaar a5 shown in the Statements of Cash Flows is reconciled 1o the: related items in the Statement of Financial position as follows.

CONSOLIDATED PARENT ENTITY
2007 2006 2007 2006
$ $ $ §
Cash at bank and on hand (Note 7) 9,428 123,598 . gam 123,598
‘ 9,428 123,588 9,428 123,598

The bank interest rate for the period for cash at bank was 5.25% (2006: 5.25%).

(b}  Reconclliation of net cash absorbad by operating activities to operating loss after Incoma tax:

Net profit (loss) 221469 (515,903)  (221,488) (564,989
Adjustments for non-cash income and expense o : o

items . . L e

Depreciation and amortisation of non current assets ' 15,339 33,034 I | < I 33,034
Dabt forgiveness ‘ ' {60,748) . L. (B0,748)

Loss on sale of non qurrent assets | 5715 - B %/ -
Directors options (36,000) 38oO0 (3B000) 38,000

Changes in assats and liabilities:

(Increase)/decrease in assets:

Decrease/(increase) in trade and other recelvables M,184 (20418) 84 {20,418)
Decragse/(increase) in prepayments and other . 42,071 . 42071
assels o

Decrease/(increase) in other assets - g e 1430
Decrease/(increase) in other financlal assets - - R 52,266
{Decrease)increase in liabilities: ‘ L Lo

{Decrease)/increase in creditors and accrugls (12,229) 15061 -0 (12229) 15,061
{Decreasa)/increase in employee entitiements 3,781) = {3,323) B -} (8,323)
Net operating casl flows (263,988) (406,847 " (263,989 " (406,847

26. Franking amount

The balance in the franking account at year end for parent account and economic entity was nil,

27.  Fvents occurring after the balance sheet date

On 18 September 2007 the Company announcad that it had execuled a Share Sale Deed to acquire & controliing Interest in VentureAxess Limited, Tha
consideration offered under this transaction is four (4) Jab Technolagies Limited fully paid ordinary shares and two {2) December 2009 share options far
avery fiva {5) shares in VentureAxess Limited (valuing sach VenlureAxess Limiled ordinary share at $0.124), and two (2) Jab Technologies Limited fully

paid ordinary shares and two (2) Jab December 2009 share options for every fifteen (15) VentureAxess Limited share options. A further 2,500,000
ordinary shares in VentureAxess Limited are being acquired by the lssue of $300,000 of Loan Notes by the Company.
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JAB TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED AMD COMTROLLED ENTITIES

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

28.  Eamings per share CONSOLIDATED
2007

Basic eamings /loss) per share (cents per share) T B F )

Diluted earnings/ (loss) per share (cents per share) T (1.4e).

Eamings used in calculating of basic/ (loss) eamings per share . ' : (a2 aed

Earnings used in calculating of diluted earnings/ (loss) per share o {221,489)

CONSOLIDATED
2007
Numbar

Waighted average number of shares used as the denominator

Weighted average number of ardinary shares used in the dominator in
calculating basic eamings /(loss) par share

Weighted average number of ordinary shares used in the

dominator in calculating diluted earnings/ (loss) per ahare

14882911

“14,862,911.

2006
(3.81)
{3.61)
(515,803)
(515,903

2006

Number

14,302 329
14,302 329

At the end of the year, the economic entity had 2,865,029 options on 185ue with an exercise price of 20 cents expiring 31 December 2008. The options
have not been Included in the diluted weighted eaming/ (loss) per share caleulation as Jab Technologies Limited's share price has been trading well below

the exerclse price of 20 cents per share,

29, Related party transactions

(a)  Parent entity
The ultimate parent entity & VentureAxess Capital Limited

(b) Subsidlary
Interests in subsidiaries are set out In note 23,

(¢) Keymanagement persennel
Disclosures relating to key management personnel are set out in note 20,

(d) Transactlons with related parties
The faliowing transactions oocurred with related parties:

CONSOQLIDATED PARENT ENTITY
2007 2006 2007 2006
5 $ s L

Superannuation contributions T S
Contribution to superannuation funds on behalf ‘ -
of emnployees n 7437 o “ 7437
There were no loans to or from related parties 2 the end of the financlal year other than as set out in Note 14,
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JAB TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

In the Directors’ opinian:

g the financial statements and notes set out in pages 18 to 43 are in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001 including:

1. Complying with Accounting Standards, the Corporations Fegulations 2000 and othar mandatory professional reporting
requirements; and

Il Giving & true and fair view of the Company’s and consclidated entity's financial position as atl 30 June 2007 and of their
performance, ag representad by the results of their operations, changes in eguity and Iheir cash flows, for the financlal year ended
on that date; and

b)  there are reagonable grounds to believe that the Company will be able to pay its debts as when they become due and payable; and

c) the audited remuneration disclosures set out on pages 6 to 11 of the Directors’ Report comply with Accounting Standards AASE 124
Related Party Disclosures and the Corporations Regulations 2001,

This declaration 15 made in accordance with a reselution of Diractors,

Geoff Mulling
Chairman

Sydney, 31 October 2007
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JAB TECHNOLOGIES LIMITELD
ABN 42 087 426 953
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO
THE MEMBERS
QF JAB TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED

| Report on the Financial Report

We have audited the accompanying financial report of JAB Technologies Limited (the
Company) and JAB Technologies Limited and Controlled Entities (the consolidated entity),
which comprises the balance sheet as at 30 June 2007 and the income statement, staiement of
changes in equity and cash flow statement for the year ended on that date, a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes and the directors® declaration of
the consolidated entity comprising the company and the entities it contralled at the yeat’s end
or from time to time during the financial yaar,

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Report

The directors of the company are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the
financial report in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards {including the Australian
Accounting Interpretations) and the Corporation Act 20¢1. This responsibility includes
establishing and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation
of the financial report that is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or errar;
selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that
are reasomable in the circumstance.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial report based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. These Auditing
Standards require that we comply with relevant ethical requirements relating to audit
engagements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the
financial report is free from material misstatement and that the remuneration disclosures in
the directors’ report comply with Accounting Standard AASE 124,

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial report. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor congiders internal conirol
relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of expressing an opinion of the
financial report in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating
the overall presentation of the financial report and the remuneration disclosures in the

directors’ report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a

basis for our audit opinion. Northetar Accountants Pty Ltd
ABN 73 000 913 735
& Info@nsg.com.au
WWW.NSg.Ccom.au

Sulite B, 80 Mona Vaie Rd
Mona Vaig NSW 2103
p 2999 2344 { 9395 4660
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Independence

In conducting our audit, we have complied with the independence requirements of the
Corporations Act 2001, We confirm that the independence declaration required by the
Corpeorations Act 200/, provided to the directors of JAB Technologies Limited on 31
October, 2007 would be in the same terms if provided to the directors as at the date of this
auditot’s report.

Auditor’s opinion
In cur opinion:

a. the financial report of JAB Technologies Limited and JAR Technologies Limited and
Controlled Entities is in accordance with the Corpora!:am Act 2001, including:

L glving a true and fair view of the company’s and consclidated entity’s
financial position as at 30 June 2007 and of their performance for the
year ended on that date; and

ii. complying with Australian Accounting Standards (including the
Australian Accounting Interpretations) and the Corporations Regulations

2001;
b. Other mandatory financial reporting requirements in Australia.
Inherent Uncertainty Regarding Going Concern
Without qualification 1o the opinion expressed above, attention is drawn to the following
matter. As indicated in Note 1 (z) to the financial statements, there is significant uncertainty

whether the Company and consolidated entity will continue as a going concern. Please see
Note 1 (z) 1o the financial statements for an explanation.

Northstar Accountants

Andrew Derek Stanning
Suite9, 90 Mona Vale Rbad, Mona Vale. NS§W 2103
31% October, 2007

Northstar Accountants Piy Lid
ABN 73 000 913 735

e info@nsg.com.au
WWW.NSQ.Com.au

Suite 8, 80 Mona Vale Rd
Mona Vale NSW 2108
p DOOD 2344 1 0000 4660

Level 2, 100 Bay Rd

Waverton NSW 2060 1.31.5‘
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JAB TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES

Shareholder Information as at 29 October 2007

Shares and optlons In Jab Technologies Limited are quoted on the Natlonal Stock Exchange (NSX Codes "JAB" & "JABO")

The 20 largest holders of sach class of equity securities in the company as &t 29 October 2007 are:

SHARES OPTIONS

Name Number % Number %
VentureAxess Capital Limited 10,667,620 T 1,272,487 BZ.04
ANZ Nominess Limited <Cash Income A/G* 2,205,568 14.87 1,195,698 13.49
Findlay § Co Stockbrokers (Underwriters) Pty Ltd 50,000 0.34
HSBC Custody Nominees (Australia) Limited 47170 0.32
Mr Daling Jay Heng 40,816 0.27
John Gordon Kellas 3r 140 0.25 10,000 011
Mr Jerzy Dondzllo 35,143 0.24 25,715 0.29
Mr Michae! Chong 0612 0.21
Ms Mary Matina Doufas & Ms Fotine Chrisi fas <Doufas
oyl o Dofes 24,466 017
National Nomineas Limited 24 0B0 016
Folytrade Pty Lid 22056 .15
Ms Linshu Ye 18,367 212
Proper T Pty Ltd 17,143 012 10,715 0.12
Mr Simon Jon Novak 16,836 0.1
Mr Chris Peter Doufas 14427 0.10
Mr Christopher Davld Hill & Mrs Michelle Ireng Hill 13,469 0.9
Mr Robert Barry Howe 12,657 0.09 8,796 0.10
Impinger Haldings Pty Ltd <The Impinger Super/Fund A{C> 11,996 0.08 4,980 .11
Mr Erroll James Geary 11,983 0.08 9915 011
Mr Neil Sutera & Mrs Rose Sutara<Sutera Family Super A/C> 11,982 0.08 9913 011
Sub total top 20 shareholders 13,317 512 89,67
Citicorp Nominees Pty Ltd 25,000 0.26
Mr Nai Pai Les 9,582 0.1
Mr Stuart Arthur Burton & Mrs Loan Thi Nguyen B,365 0.02
Genoffrey Norman Luckwell 7.8979 0.09
Peter Mathew Lang 7,766 0.08
Mr Malcolm lan Kemball & Mrs Paula Kemball 5,982 0.08
Mr Mark Francis Vale 6,529 0.07
Midcon Py Ltd 6414 .07
Ms Cam Chau Phan 6,000 .07
langham Nominses <Pedretti Super Fund A/C> 5443 .06
Mr Gala Ulrich Pitzner 5143 0.06
Sub total top 20 option holders 8,647,942 97.55
in issue 14,862,911 B,B65,029
The listed options are exercizable at 20 cents each on or before 31 December 2009,
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